

City and County of San Francisco Meeting Minutes Budget and Finance Committee

City Hall 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place San Francisco, CA 94102-4689

Members: Matt Haney, Ahsha Safai, Gordon Mar

Clerk: Linda Wong (415) 554-7719

Wednesday, May 19, 2021

10:30 AM

Regular Meeting

Present: 3 - Matt Haney, Ahsha Safai, and Gordon Mar

The Budget and Finance Committee met in regular session through videoconferencing, and provided public comment through teleconferencing, on Wednesday, May 19, 2021, with Chair Matt Haney presiding. Chair Haney called the meeting to order at 10:34 a.m.

Remote Access to Information and Participation

In accordance with Governor Newsom's Executive Order No. N-33-20 declaring a State of Emergency regarding the COVID-19 outbreak and Mayor London N. Breed's Proclamation declaring a Local Emergency issued on February 25, 2020, including the guidance for gatherings issued by the San Francisco Department of Public Health Officer, aggressive directives were issued to reduce the spread of COVID-19. On March 17, 2020, the Board of Supervisors authorized their Board and Committee meetings to convene remotely (via Microsoft Teams) and will allow remote public comment via teleconference. Visit the SFGovTV website at (www.sfgovtv.org) to stream the live meetings, or to watch meetings on demand. Members of the public are encouraged to participate remotely via detailed instructions on participating via teleconference available at: https://sfbos.org/remote-meeting-call.

Members of the public may participate by phone or may submit their comments by email to: linda.wong@sfgov.org; all comments received will be made a part of the official record. Regularly-scheduled Budget and Finance Committee Meetings begin at 10:30 a.m. every Wednesday of each month. Committee agendas and their associated documents are available at https://sfbos.org/committees.

ROLL CALL AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

On the call of the roll, Chair Haney, Vice Chair Safai, and Member Mar were noted present. A quorum was present.

AGENDA CHANGES

There were no agenda changes.

REGULAR AGENDA

210411 [Contract Amendment - Hyatt Corporation - Hotel Management for On-Airport Hotel - Not to Exceed \$23,841,880]

Resolution approving the Fourth Modification to the Hotel Management Agreement with Hyatt Corporation for management of the on-airport hotel at San Francisco International Airport, to reduce the management fees paid to Hyatt Corporation during Hotel operating years 2021 and 2022, extend the trigger dates for certain performance termination events, extend the initial term by two years, and increase the contract amount for a new total amount not to exceed \$23,841,880 to commence upon Board approval. (Airport Commission)

(Fiscal Impact)

04/19/21; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

04/27/21; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Dyanna Volek (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Haney moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 3 - Haney, Safai, Mar

Chair Haney requested File Nos. 210415, 210447, and 210448 be called together.

210415 [Contract Amendment - Retroactive - Moonstar Buffet Restaurant - Great Plates Delivered - Not to Exceed \$17,424,000]

Resolution approving a third amendment between the City and County of San Francisco and Moonstal Buffet Restaurant, for the administration of the Great Plates Delivered Program, to extend the contract term by eight months for a total term of June 22, 2020, through December 31, 2021, and to increase the contract amount by \$8,085,000 for a total not to exceed amount of \$17,424,000 to commence on May 1, 2021. (Human Services Agency) (Fiscal Impact)

04/19/21; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

04/27/21; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Melissa McGee (Human Services Agency); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Haney moved that this Resolution be AMENDED, AN AMENDMENT OF THE WHOLE BEARING NEW TITLE to state that the contract amendment approval is retroactive. The motion carried by the following vote:

Resolution retroactively approving a third amendment between the City and County of San Francisco and Moonstar Buffet Restaurant, for the administration of the Great Plates Delivered Program, to extend the contract term by eight months for a total term of June 22, 2020, through December 31, 2021, and to increase the contract amount by \$8,085,000 for a total not to exceed amount of \$17,424,000 to commence on May 1, 2021. (Human Services Agency) (Fiscal Impact)

Chair Haney moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED AS AMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 3 - Haney, Safai, Mar

210447 [Contract Amendment - San Francisco New Deal - Great Plates Delivered - Not to Exceed \$39,926,000]

Resolution approving a third amendment between the City and County of San Francisco and San Francisco New Deal, for the administration of the Great Plates Delivered program, to extend the contract term by seven months for a total term of June 1, 2020, through December 31, 2021, and to increase the contract amount by \$21,186,000 for a total not to exceed amount of \$46,926,000 to commence on June 1, 2021. (Human Services Agency) (Fiscal Impact)

04/26/21; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

05/04/21; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Melissa McGee (Human Services Agency); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Haney moved that this Resolution be AMENDED, AN AMENDMENT OF THE WHOLE BEARING NEW TITLE to reduce the not-to-exceed amount by \$7,000,000, for a total not to exceed \$39,926,000. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 3 - Haney, Safai, Mar

Resolution approving a third amendment between the City and County of San Francisco and San Francisco New Deal, for the administration of the Great Plates Delivered program, to extend the contract term by seven months for a total term of June 1, 2020, through December 31, 2021, and to increase the contract amount by \$14,186,000 for a total not to exceed amount of \$39,926,000 to commence on June 1, 2021. (Human Services Agency) (Fiscal Impact)

Chair Haney moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED AS AMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

210448 [Contract Amendment - Off the Grid Services LLC - Great Plates Delivered - Not to Exceed \$45,993,000]

Resolution approving a third amendment between the City and County of San Francisco and Off the Grid Services LLC, for the administration of the Great Plates Delivered program, to extend the contract term by seven months for a total term of May 29, 2020, through December 31, 2021, and to increase the contract amount by \$21,483,000 for a total not to exceed amount of \$50,193,000 to commence on May 29, 2021. (Human Services Agency) (Fiscal Impact)

04/26/21; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

05/04/21; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Melissa McGee (Human Services Agency); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Haney moved that this Resolution be AMENDED, AN AMENDMENT OF THE WHOLE BEARING NEW TITLE to reduce the not-to-exceed amount by \$4,200,000, for a total not to exceed \$45,993,000. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 3 - Haney, Safai, Mar

Resolution approving a third amendment between the City and County of San Francisco and Off the Grid Services LLC, for the administration of the Great Plates Delivered program, to extend the contract term by seven months for a total term of May 29, 2020, through December 31, 2021, and to increase the contract amount by \$17,283,000 for a total not to exceed amount of \$45,993,000 to commence on May 29, 2021. (Human Services Agency) (Fiscal Impact)

Chair Haney moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED AS AMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 3 - Haney, Safai, Mar

210425 [Accept and Expend Grant - Retroactive - The Governor's Office of Business and Economic Development - Cannabis Equity Grants Program for Local Jurisdictions - \$2,055,841.43]

Sponsor: Mayor

Resolution retroactively authorizing the Office of Cannabis to accept and expend a grant award in the amount of \$2,055,841.43 from April 15, 2021, through October 31, 2022 from the Governor's Office of Business and Economic Development for the Local Equity Grants Program for Local Jurisdictions; authorizing the Office of Cannabis to execute the agreement with the Governor's Office of Business and Economic Development, and any extensions, amendments, or contracts subsequent thereto, on behalf of the City and County of San Francisco; and indemnifying the Governor's Office of Business and Economic Development for liability arising out of the performance of this contract.

04/20/21; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speaker: Jeremy Schwartz (Office of Cannabis); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Haney moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

210457 [Accept and Expend Gift - Retroactive - EPIC Charitable Fund - Safety Net Gift - \$90.000]

Sponsor: Mayor

Resolution retroactively authorizing the Department of Public Health to accept and expend a monetary gift in the amount of \$90,000 from the EPIC Charitable Fund to help low income and at-risk populations, for the period of March 27, 2021, through March 27, 2022. (Public Health Department) 04/27/21; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speaker: Eric Raffin (Department of Public Health); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Haney moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 3 - Haney, Safai, Mar

210508

[Issuance of Special Tax Bonds - Improvement Area No. 1 of the City and County of San Francisco Community Facilities District No. 2016-1 (Treasure Island) - Not to Exceed Aggregate Principal Amount of \$41,340,000] Sponsor: Mayor

Resolution supplementing Resolution No. 12-17 authorizing the issuance and sale of one or more series of Special Tax Bonds for City and County of San Francisco Community Facilities District No. 2016-1 (Treasure Island) with respect to its Improvement Area No. 1 in the aggregate principal amount not to exceed \$41,340,000; approving related documents, including an Official Statement, First Supplement to Fiscal Agent Agreement, Bond Purchase Agreement and Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, and determining other matters in connection therewith, as defined herein.

05/04/21; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speaker: Luke Brewer (Office of the Controller); provided an overview and responded to guestions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Haney moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

210509 [Purchase Option Agreement - Prologis, L.P. - 1236 Carroll Avenue - Not to Exceed \$180.000]

Sponsors: Mayor; Walton

Resolution approving a Purchase Option Agreement between the City and County of San Francisco and Prologis, L.P. that provides the City with a unilateral right to exercise an option to purchase property located at 1236 Carroll Avenue at any time prior to June 1, 2022, subject to a series of preceding actions, including satisfying any conditions or requirements under the California Environmental Quality Act, and future legislation being adopted by the Board of Supervisors to authorize the City's exercise of the option and purchase of the property; and authorizing the Director or Property to make modifications and take actions in furtherance of this Resolution, as defined herein, and the Purchase Option Agreement.

(Fiscal Impact)

05/04/21; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

05/11/21; REFERRED TO DEPARTMENT. Referred to the Planning Department for environmental review.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Andrico Penick, Director (Real Estate Department); Jeanine Nicholson, Chief (Fire Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Haney moved that this Resolution be AMENDED, AN AMENDMENT OF THE WHOLE BEARING SAME TITLE to reduce the Purchase Option Agreement not to exceed amount from \$195,000 to \$180,000. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 3 - Haney, Safai, Mar (Fiscal Impact)

Chair Haney moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED AS AMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

200876

[Home Detention Electronic Monitoring Program Rules and Regulations and Program Administrator's Evidence of Financial Responsibility - FY2020-2021]

Resolution approving the Sheriff Office's home detention and electronic monitoring program rules and regulations; and approving evidence of financial responsibility demonstrated by program administrator. Sentinel Offender Services, LLC, for FY2020-2021. (Sheriff)

07/28/20: RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

08/11/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

09/02/20; CONTINUED. Heard in Committee. Speakers: Crispin Hollings and Jonathan Kuhns (Sheriff's Department); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion. Carolyn Goossen (Public Defender's Office); Zack Goldman; spoke neither in support nor opposition to the hearing matter. Molly Hernandez; Nick Dransie; Edward Hernandez; Izzy Almund; Jeffrey Straut; spoke in opposition to the hearing matter.

09/16/20; CONTINUED. Heard in Committee. Speakers: None.

09/30/20; CONTINUED. Heard in Committee. Speakers: Crispin Hollings (Sheriff's Department); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion. Mohammed Chat; Dorothy Bass; Michael Lard; Diana Blog; spoke in opposition to the hearing matter. Melissa Hernandez; spoke neither in support nor opposition to the hearing matter.

10/07/20; CONTINUED TO CALL OF THE CHAIR. Heard in Committee. Speakers: Crispin Hollings (Sheriff's Department); James Kilgore; provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion. Frank Yodo; Alice Saver; Mohammed Chat; Wesley Saver; Vienna Louis; Speaker; Diana Blog; Speaker; Ms. Hernandez; Bridget; Mimi Krossner; Carolyn Goosen (Office of the District Attorney); Vido; spoke on various concerns relating to the hearing matter.

11/18/20; CONTINUED TO CALL OF THE CHAIR. Heard in Committee. Speakers: None.

12/02/20; CONTINUED TO CALL OF THE CHAIR. Heard in Committee. Speakers: Crispin Hollings (Sheriff's Department); Katherine Miller, Chief Juvenile Probation Officer (Juvenile Probation Department); Karen Fletcher, Chief Adult Probation Officer (Adult Probation Department); Michael Yuen, Chief Executive Officer (Superior Court); Cristina Barron and Matt Miller (San Francisco Pretrial Diverson Project); Matt Sotorosen (Office of the Public Defender); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion. Leslie Saber; Izzy; Meredith Desatel; David Morris; Gracie; speaker; Kristen; Javier Bremond; Ms. Hernandez; Kat Whinesburg; spoke on various concerns relating to the hearing matter.

12/16/20; AMENDED, AN AMENDMENT OF THE WHOLE BEARING SAME TITLE. Heard in Committee. Speakers: Crispin Hollings (Sheriff's Department); Matt Sotorosen (Office of the Public Defender); Anne Pearson (Office of the City Attorney); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion. Wesley Sniper; spoke on various concerns relating to the hearing matter.

12/16/20; CONTINUED TO CALL OF THE CHAIR AS AMENDED.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: None.

Chair Haney moved that this Resolution be CONTINUED to the Budget and Finance Committee meeting of May 26, 2021. The motion carried by the following vote:

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the Budget and Finance Committee adjourned at the hour of 11:35 a.m.

N.B. The Minutes of this meeting set forth all actions taken by the Budget and Finance Committee on the matters stated, but not necessarily in the chronological sequence in which the matters were taken up.